Lake County Vignette - “ Parmly: The Greatest Dental Family “

When the Eleazer Parmly family came to Perry in 1817, they were one of earliest township
settlers. Arriving from Vermont, Eleazer who first came to Lake County a year earlier to visit his
daughter Hannah and her husband Samuel Burridge was so enthralled with the locality that in
the spring of 1817 he purchased a tract of land near Lake Erie and brought his wife Hanna
(Spear) and family to the area. Set to make his mark in the then undeveloped trade of dentistry,
his family passed the residue of their lives in our future county, the Parmly names meriting an
enduring place in the role of early important county pioneers. Eleazer was the father of ten
children who bore the family name of Parmelee / Parmly and saw 13 family members become
dentists. Upon arrival in 1817, two of his sons Levi and Eleazer had already entered the family
calling. Levi studied in Boston and after three years of an apprenticeship opened a practice in
Montreal. Two years in London followed before he spent three decades in New Orleans and
became noted for his publications on dental hygiene. Levi’s affinity for his hometown was
evident at the time of his death in France. Upon his request, he was returned stateside and
buried in the family plot in Perry. Eleazer learned much from his experienced brother and chose
NYC as his home. In time, Eleazer became one of the founders of the American Society of
Dental Surgeons.

Another son Jehiel grew up on the pioneer farm in Perry but soon followed in the vocation
when in 1820 he went to London to study and apprentice with his brother Levi. By 1823 he
returned to the United States. 1834 saw him return to Perry and in 1840 opened the Red Mill
(flour mill), one of the first major industries of Perry. The next 30 years he spent summers in
Perry and the remainder of the year at first in Washington DC, then NYC and finally as a
transient dentist in the South and Midwest. Documents even mention President James
Monroe as a patient of his. Dr. Jehiel Parmly married Miss Eliza A. Pleasants in 1826 and upon
the death of his father lived in the family home in Perry.

Samuel Parmly, the youngest brother followed his brother Levi to NYC as a prominent
practitioner. Despite achieving notoriety in the early advances of dental surgery, he retained a



deep love for Lake County. It was he who erected the Parmly Hotel in Painesville, Ohio in
1860. Opened in 1861, it was quite the hotel for its time. Located on the Town Square facing
the park, a balcony spanned the length of the front facade. Smaller balconies adorned the
upper floors. It featured an observatory that hosted numerous ballroom dances in the early
years. Briefly in the 1880s, the hotel was renamed the Cowles House but the Parmly name
soon returned. The hotel even featured a Chief Dietician, Elizabeth Wetzel, whose detailed
recipe book anchors a historic collection located at the Ohio History Connection building in
Columbus. The Parmly Hotel appeared in two feature movies, most notably the film One
Potato, Two Potato.

David, the oldest Parmly brother remained a Perry farmer. James L. Parmly passed in 1908
having spent a major portion of his life in the agricultural industry and as a hardware business
owner in Painesville. Cousins, brothers-in-law and sons produced a final dentistry total of 18
over the ensuing generations. As we conclude, the Parmly Mansion remains an important
footnote in forgotten county history. Still standing and visible today near village hall- here is
the rest of the story. Jehiel /Jahiel Parmly died in 1876. His wife passed 15 years later. The
mansion remained vacant and unused from 1891-1918.

« The Lorimer family bought it. Owner William, aka Dub or Bill
opened Camp Roosevelt for Boys on the property. In 1943,
Camp Wingfoot, the previous Goodyear Tire and Rubber
Company site, became the nearby girls camp. Both
occupied 100 acres. A kid’s camp followed in time. From
1946-1980, the camps flourished but the Nuclear Power
Plant opening in 1987 had an immediate consequence.
Fearful parents chose not to send their children to summer
camps there and attendance plummeted by 70%. Despite
some moves,
financial troubles
followed and 20 acres and the mansion were sold in
2002. On April 1, 2012 Bill Lorimer passed. Within
months, the camp closed forever, now a footprint in
y time.




While the fenced in mansion still remains and can be viewed, its future remains uncertain.
Camp Wingfoot Park was lost to time more than a decade ago and now serves the community
as dedicated baseball fields. Much of the original Parmly Family acreage has been acquired by
Lake Metroparks over the years and is now part of the Lake Erie Bluffs site. The Parmly Hotel
in downtown Painesville was razed in 1970 as part of the urban renewal focus. The former
hotel became the New Market Mall site and later Victoria Place building.
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